

# Knighton Heath Golf Club

# **Policies & Bye Laws**

# Contents

1.	Membership	3
2.	Liability:	3
3.	Parking	3
4.	Dress Code	4
5.	Notices and signage	4
6.	Death, Suspension or Relocation	4
7.	Animals	5
8.	Electronic devices (includes mobile phones, pagers, laptops etc.):	5
9.	Local Rules	5
10.	Reciprocal Booking Procedure	5
11.	Member's Green Fee Voucher Scheme	6
12.	Social Media	6
13.	General Play Start Times	9
14.	Starting from 1st & 11th	9
15.	Tee Boxes	10
16.	Buggies & Trolleys	10
17.	Golf etiquette	10
18.	Preferred Lies	11
19.	Practice	11
20.	Signage	11
21.	Closure	11
22.	Smoking	11
23.	Sharing of Clubs	11
24.	Inclement Weather & Suspension of Play	11
28.	Groups & Societies	15
29.	Flexible Membership Rules	15
30.	Tee Sponsors	16
31.	All Players	16
32.	Eligibility	17
33.	Knock-Out Competitions.	17
34.	Saturday and Sunday Competitions (Medals / Stablefords)	17
35.	Shotgun Starts	18
36.	Order of Merit	18
37.	Late Cards	18
38.	Handicap Supplementary Scores	18

#### **SECTION A - GENERAL**

# 1. Membership

The following membership categories are offered:

- (a) Full over 35 years of age
- (b) Full between 26 & 35 years of age
- (c) Full between 23 & 25 years of age
- (d) Full between 19 & 22 years of age
- (e) **Full Senior** 75+ years of age and must have been a Full member for at least a full subscription year.
- (f) **Country** place of domicile must be 50 or more miles from the club.
- (g) **Overseas** category closed to new members.
- (h) **HM Armed Forces** must produce a valid Armed Forces ID card.
- (i) 5 Day Senior existing members 75+ years of age with 15 years continuous membership with the club. Not allowed to play in any weekend club competitions other than in the Captains, Presidents and Professionals Golf Days. No green fee payment required.
- (j) 5 Day restricted by numbers. Not allowed to play in any weekend club competitions other than in the Captains, Presidents and Professionals Golf Days. No green fee payment required.
- (k) **Seniors Social** 7 day playing membership restricted to front 10 holes only, 1 through to 10. No handicap or playing in Competitions. Must be 75+ years of age and have 15 years continuous membership with the club.
- (I) Flexible Annual fee paid in advance, with the payment of a reduced green fee on weekdays & weekends. Not allowed to play in any club competitions other than Captains, Presidents and Professionals Golf Days by paying the appropriate members guest green fee, together with the competition entry fee.

  For more detail refer to rule 28. Handicap maintained by supplementary cards.
- (m) **Junior** under 14 years of age
- (n) **Junior** 14 18 years of age
- (o) **Social** use of clubhouse only, restricted by numbers. Allowed to play on the course a maximum of 12 times per subscription year, by paying the appropriate green fee.

Not allowed to play in any club competitions other than if invited to play in the Captains, Presidents and Professionals Golf Days by paying the appropriate members guest green fee, together with the competition entry fee.

Invited social members are limited to 4 per golf day and must be in possession of a current handicap

# 2. Liability:

Neither the Club nor its officers shall be responsible for;

- a) loss of or damage to property belonging to members, guests or visitors.
- b) damage or injury caused by players,

All players are strongly advised to obtain their own insurance against such risks.

#### 3. Parking

All persons visiting the Club must park their vehicles:

- a) in the Club car park, except in places reserved for officers, directors or other officials of the Club and/or designated no-parking areas,
- b) as directed by club marshals (where applicable),

c) and, be considerate in terms of leaving space for others to access their vehicles and of leaving room for others to park their vehicles.

#### 4. Dress Code

An acceptable standard of dress is to be worn at all times when playing golf and whilst in the clubhouse. The acceptable standard of dress notice is prominently posted inside and outside the clubhouse, on the club web site and on various electronic devises.

# 5. Notices and signage

- a) Members and visitors must adhere to any signage displayed,
- b) Official Club notices, starting sheets, rules and so forth as may be posted on the Club's notice boards shall be properly treated and not defaced, misused or removed.
- c) Members wishing to post any notices, within the clubhouse or on any electronic device may only do so on the prior approval of the club manager

#### 6. Death, Suspension or Relocation

<u>Upon death or proof of a debilitating medical condition</u>, the agreement between the member and KHGC Ltd will be terminated. The balance of any advanced payments will be refunded from the 1<sup>st</sup> of the month following written and substantiated notification of such fact.

A member may apply in writing to the Club Manager to <u>suspend their membership due</u> <u>to serious ill health, injury</u> etc.

*Ideally such a request should be supported* by the production of a Consultants/Doctor's letter stating that he/she is / was unfit to play golf and

- the effective date of transfer (application date) to be utilised is, either the earlier date of that reflected on the Doctors / Consultants letter or the date that the letter or email was received from the member by the office.
- the accrual subscription credit refund will be as follows:
  - 50% of the subscriptions paid for each full month calculated from the application date to the return date.
- the accrual subscription credit refund calculated above, will be credited against the following years annual subscription.

Where the doctors / consultant's letter does not contain a 'fit to play again' date then the date used as the 'fit to play again' date will be as that agreed between the Club Manager and the member, or as approved by the Management Committee.

All transfers to / from suspended membership are subject to the agreement of the Management Committee.

A member may apply in writing to the Manager to <u>terminate his/her membership due to</u> employment transfer or relocation and

- on approval by the Management Committee.
- must notify the office of a proposed relocation and therefore early termination of membership, on or before 1 July each year.
- must have had at least one full year's membership prior to 1 July.
- must pay the applicable subscription in full, and on or before 1 July.

• will receive a refund of the balance of any advanced payments, less a 6.9% fee calculated on the full subscription payment, from the 1<sup>st</sup> of the month following written and substantiated notification of such fact.

#### 7. Animals

Only guide dogs are permitted on the course.

# 8. Electronic devices (includes mobile phones, pagers, laptops etc.):

- a) may only be used if switched to silent,
- b) such devices when used on the course are limited to the measuring of distance only

Members are encouraged to be fully conversant with the R&A rules to ensure they are fully compliant before using or taking any device onto the course.

# 9. Local Rules

As printed on the score card.

Additional local rules may be published and posted on the Club notice boards, web site or other electronic devices. It is the responsibility of all players to know the local rules.

# 10. Reciprocal Booking Procedure

- May be requested more than 2 weeks in advance but will only be processed 14 days prior to the date.
- Please number your top 3 choices on the form in order of preference.
- All players visiting the reciprocal course must be named.
- Please insure you take your membership card for proof of ID when visiting your course.
- Show the date and time you wish to play.
- Please state any special needs on the booking form.
- Please give contact details of the lead name.
- A payment of £5 is required on completion of the reciprocal form.
- Please do not contact clubs directly; booking of reciprocals may only be made by the professional staff.
- Reciprocals cannot be booked or played on weekends (weekdays only)
- Every request will be dealt with on a first come basis.
- A minimum of 24 hours is required in order to deal with your request efficiently.
- All requests must be made by completing the form and handing it to the professional shop. NO bookings can be made over the phone.
- Once your reciprocal has been booked this is confirmed by receipt of your booking form. Please take completed form with you on your visit.
- Please respect the dress code and club rules of all visiting clubs.
- If you choose not to use your booking for any reason other than course closure, your charge will stand.

#### 21 Reciprocal Clubs:

ONE 4 ball per day at: Ashley Wood, & Reading

ONE 4 ball per day, cost of £10 per player at: Bramshaw & Weymouth

ONE 4 ball per week, cost of £10 per player at: Yeovil

ONE 4 ball per week at: Came Down (Dorchester), Chippenham, Cricket St Thomas (Somerset), Enmore Park (Somerset), Hamptworth, Highcliffe Castle (Christchurch), Lewes (East Sussex), Malborough (Wiltshire), Romsey (Southampton), Salisbury & South Wilts, Taunton & Pickeridge, Teignmouth, Wareham, Wellow & West Hove.

TWO 4 balls per week at. Boundary Lakes (Ageas Bowl, Southampton)

# 11. Member's Green Fee Voucher Scheme

- Vouchers will be charged at a price as agreed by the Management Committee from time to time.
- A minimum of 3 vouchers per member must be purchased at any one time
- A maximum of 6 vouchers per member may be purchased each month in which they are for sale.
- Vouchers are valid for 3 months from the date of purchase.
- The member must be present in the pro shop to sign his or her visitor in.
- Each member may only sign in a maximum of 3 visitors to the club in a day.
- Vouchers may only be used by current members and <u>must</u> only be used by the member named on the voucher.
- Once the member has resigned they may no longer be used but refunds can be obtained from the office.
- Vouchers may not be used to sign in members that have left the club in the previous membership year.
- <u>All</u> tickets are non-transferable and may not be used by a member other than that named under any circumstances.

# 12. Social Media

# a) Purpose

This policy sets out Knighton Heath Golf Club's (KHGC) expectations on the use of social media websites by its members.

It is assumed that all members are aware of the content of this document and will act accordingly

# (b) Background

The Internet provides many opportunities to communicate with other individuals, other members and the community. Social media websites i.e. Facebook, Twitter etc. provide the opportunity for members to engage with other members and view Club activities. Members should be aware that the use of these websites can also be abused and potentially damage the reputation of KHGC and in extreme cases result in legal proceedings against an individual and/or KHGC

The web is not anonymous. Users of social media websites should assume that any comments made by them will be able to be traced back to them. When using social websites in general, members need to a make a clear distinction between their activities as a member of KHGC and their personal or business activities undertaken outside of KHGC

The Internet is a fastmoving technology and it is impossible to cover all circumstances. This policy aims to provide guiding principles to help to exercise good judgment as well as providing specific details on behaviour that must not be undertaken. Regular updates will be made as the situation determines and members will be advised of any changes via the normal channels e.g. club website, club newsletter, AGM etc.

# (c) Consideration towards other KHGC Members

Social media websites allow photographs, videos and comments to be shared with other users. It is not appropriate to share club-related information in unauthorised social media forums without the prior approval from the Club Manager. Members must be considerate to other members, staff and the club. If requested, they must remove information about a member or the Club immediately when requested by the member or the Club.

Members are encouraged to use their best judgment in deciding if or at what level they want to connect with other members as 'friends' etc. on social media websites. KHGC will support members decisions to keep online relationships strictly professional.

Under no circumstance should offensive or discriminatory comments be made about KHGC, members or staff online.

#### (d) Membership definition

This policy covers all forms of social media and applies to all KHGC members in all categories of membership.

# (e) Objectives

To ensure KHGC members understand the guiding principles, scope and terms of use of social media websites and what actions will be taken subject to any breach by a member.

#### (f) Guiding Principles

When any individual uses a KHGC website, or links directly or indirectly with a KHGC site they automatically identify their association with KHGC and are expected to behave appropriately, in ways that are consistent with KHGC values, policies and rules.

#### (g) Scope

It includes but is not limited to:

- any online activity where information is shared by an individual that might affect members
- maintaining a profile page on one of the social or business networking sites (like LinkedIn, Facebook, Twitter or Myspace etc.):
- leaving product or service review on retailer sites, or customer review sites:
- taking part in online votes and polls:
- taking part in conversation on public and private web forums such as message boards; or adding photographic, video or other images:
- editing a Wikipedia page.

#### (h) Consideration / restrictions on postings made

- must not be used as a medium for formal correspondence to the Directors, any club committee, club manager, club professional or any other member of staff
  - NB The Board and Management will not reply using social media
- must not prejudice or interfere with club operational commitments:
- must not contain or link to libellous, discriminatory, defamatory or harassing content
- must not contain or link to pornographic, indecent or expletive content:
- must not comment on, or publish information that is confidential or proprietary to KHGC its affiliates, suppliers or customers:
- must not bring the organisation into disrepute.
- must not use the KHGC brand/logo to endorse or promote any product, opinion, cause or political candidate

- must not use KHGC online pages to promote personal / business projects except with the express permission of the club manager
- must respect the copyright of third parties.
- must not make any posting which purports to be on behalf of KHGC without the express permission of the club manager
- members should take extreme care in ensuring, that on non KHGC sites, that it is abundantly clear to any other user that any opinions expressed by a member are personal opinions only and do not represent the views of KHGC

Where a member has any doubt, as to compliance of any posting they are considering, they are encouraged to contact the KHGC club manager for his opinion/approval before making the posting.

# (i) Breach of Policy

# KHGC retains the right to:

- delete any content/link which contravenes this policy
- block any user/site
- commence disciplinary action as per KHGC rules.

# **SECTION B - THE COURSE**

# 13. General Play Start Times

Members are requested not to start play before the times specified below, to allow the green staff to perform their daily duties.

Please be aware that the green staff always have priority on the course.

	Not Before	*Course Status Update by
March to October	07:00	08:00
November	07:30	08:30
December	08:00	09:00
January	08:00	09:00
February	07:30	08:30

<sup>\*</sup>Temporary Greens update to follow as soon as possible thereafter.

**NOTE:** 11<sup>th</sup> tee will remain closed until 09:30 throughout the year.

# 14. Starting from 1st & 11th

The 1st and the 11th tees are the only tees that can be used to start from.

- All players in the 2/3/4-ball must be ready to play and at the ball chute when ball is placed in chute.
- Players are not obliged to stay around the chute. They may avail themselves of
  any facility at the club. However, if all the players are not there when their ball is
  next in line in the chute, the ball will be placed at the back of the ball queue by the
  marshal. If not being marshalled the ball may be moved to the back of the queue
  by players who already have a ball in the chute.
- No other interference of balls in the chute will be permitted except with the approval of groups who already have balls in the chute.
- If a player wishes to join a group who already have a ball in the chute, that player should show courtesy to the groups behind that ball by seeking their approval to join the group in question. Such approval is not required from players not at the chute at that time.
- 4-balls are to be encouraged wherever possible, particularly at weekends.
- Any member refusing to take guidance and instruction from the marshal will be reported to the Captain's Committee and appropriate action will be taken.
- Weekend rules also apply on all Bank Holidays.
- Any games may start only after 09:30 at the 11th hole.
- If a game is on or playing to the 10<sup>th</sup> green, that game has priority. Thereafter games must alternate.
- If any published booking from the 1<sup>st</sup>, is on or playing to the 10<sup>th</sup> green, that competition/group/match has priority.
- On reaching the 1<sup>st</sup> tee, players must place their ball at the back of the ball chute and wait for their turn, providing there is no official closure in operation.
- No members or visitors are allowed to join other groups who have already started.

#### 15. Tee Boxes

Unless specific permission is given by the Captain's Committee play / matches must be from the following tees:

<u>Purple Tees</u> – Juniors and if they prefer Seniors, Societies and Visitors

Red Tees - Ladies'

Yellow tees - Seniors' matches, societies, friendly matches and visitors

<u>White Tees</u> - must be used for all Club Medal, Stableford and trophy competitions and major matches (Hardy League A and B, Beckford Bowl and suchlike) with the exception that the Senior's Section, may elect to use the white markers for their competitions.

Tee pegs must be used on all Par 3 tees.

# 16. Buggies & Trolleys

The use of buggies and trolleys (push or battery operated);

- is subject to the restrictions displayed on club notices and on electronic devices and
- will only be permitted subject to compliance with the Club's approved policy and where applicable to any notices contained thereon.

Please DO NOT cross any white lines around greens with buggies or trollies.

To comply with EGU competition rules, it shall be a condition of any club board or qualifying competition that players must walk at all times during a stipulated round, unless permitted to use a golf buggy.

A golf buggy may only be used by a player who can provide a valid current medical certificate of disability.

If any member, including blue badge holders, consider they need a buggy to play during board or qualifying competitions, please collect a *Medial Exemption Form* from the club office, ask your doctor to complete and return to the office.

<u>Emergency Medical Exemption</u> (EME): If a member is injured immediately prior (1 day before) or on the weekend of a board or qualifying competition, any member of the Handicap & Competitions Sub-Committee (Captain, Vice-Captain, Ladies Captain, Ladies Vice-Captain & Professional) is authorised by the Captains Committee, to issue an Emergency Medical Exemption, which would allow the injured member to play in the competition, by using a buggy. This EME is only valid for the particular competition. The H & C officer must immediately inform the Professional of his/her decision.

#### 17. Golf etiquette

Must, be observed and particular attention is drawn to;

- the repairing <u>pitch marks</u>,
- raking marks made in bunkers.
- <u>replacing divots</u> (in the rough and on the fairways),
- allowing following matches or groups to play through when searching for <u>lost balls</u> and
- <u>pace of play</u> It is a group's responsibility to keep up with the group in front. If it loses a clear hole and it is delaying the group behind, it should invite the group behind to play through, *irrespective of the number of players* in that group.

• <u>priority on the course</u>: unless otherwise determined by the Committee, priority on the course is determined by a group's pace of play. Any group playing a whole round is entitled to pass a group playing a shorter round. The term 'group' includes a single player.

#### 18. Preferred Lies

If, in the opinion of the Course Manager, Club Manager or Chairman of the Greens Committee, circumstances necessitate preferred lies, or teeing up under extreme conditions, such may be imposed. An appropriate local rule will be published.

#### 19. Practice

Other than as permitted under the R&A Rules of Golf practice on the course (the playing of two balls) is strictly forbidden.

# 20. Signage

Members and visitors are not permitted to move any signage or course furniture (ink flags etc.) except when temporarily allowed within the rules of golf.

# 21. Closure

Members must adhere to any notices in respect of full or partial closure of the Golf Course. This may be necessary at certain times due to the state of the Course; prevailing weather conditions; or other special circumstances. This action is taken either to prevent damage to the Course or to ensure the safety of golfers and other persons on the Course.

The Course Manager or his Deputy has the authority to close and reopen the Course and to ban or re-instate the use of trolleys and/or buggies.

In the absence of the Course Manager, this authority is delegated to any TWO of the following: the Club Professional, a Director or the Club Manager following an inspection.

The Course Manager or his Deputy must be informed of any decision made, prior to the relevant action being taken.

# 22. Smoking

When conditions are hazardous and fire risk is serious ALL smoking on the course may be banned by the Club Manager, Course Manager or Club Professional in the interests of safety.

# 23. Sharing of Clubs

Except as permitted by the R&A Rules of Golf, clubs may NOT be shared.

# 24. Inclement Weather & Suspension of Play

Playing golf at Knighton Heath is a special experience because of its heathland setting with natural undulations, which give rise to slopes in places. In addition, we have rabbits and moles digging holes to trip the unwary.

Golf by its very nature can be a dangerous game, we therefor draw your attention to the following.

# **Adverse Weather Conditions**

The signal for suspension of play is one prolonged note of klaxon. Please leave the course as soon as possible after klaxon sounds.

#### Ice and Frost

Greenkeeping staff will check the golf course for any safety issues and advise the golf reception whether the course is safe to open before the first tee time.

When there is no frost but the ground is frozen to a depth of more than 3 inches full greens will be in use unless the ground is expected to thaw out throughout the course of the day, in which case the winter greens will remain in play to eliminate any chance of damage to the full greens.

Green-keeping staff will advise the Pro Shop before the first tee time and if need be throughout the day.

Extreme caution MUST be taken when conditions are icy.

Do your own risk assessment and ask yourself if you really need to be playing golf when conditions are frosty or icy.

**Paths and Bridges** are not gritted on the course and could be slippery. Care MUST be taken when using them. When using constructed paths please take care as they are uneven in places.

**Slopes** can be slippery even in dry weather so please take special care and always consider using a longer route with a gentler slope when negotiating them. Our greens staff do all that is reasonable to keep steps and paths clear of mud, but these areas can still become slippery in wet or frosty conditions and care should be taken at all times when using them.

#### **Thunder and Lightning**

In the event of thunder and lightning the golf course will close with immediate effect. If klaxon is sounded, you MUST leave the course immediately. Players are advised to leave the course or take shelter in the event of a storm even if you do not hear the klaxon.

# **Poor Visibility Fog/Mist**

If the 1st fairway bunker cannot be seen from the yellow tee, then play will be suspended until conditions improve.

The decision to close the course for fog lays with the greens staff as fog can fall at any time of the day and they can check the weather forecast at regular intervals. If there is ever any doubt whether the course is safe to play due to foggy conditions the course will close.

Golfers must take extra care to check where they are hitting is clear of other golfers and green-keeping staff/Students.

Anyone playing in 'foggy' conditions does so entirely at their own risk.

#### Flooding / Heavy Rain

The weather can vary from day-to-day or even hour to hour, therefor we do not offer a rain check policy.

Greenkeeping staff will check the course to ensure it is safe and playable. They will also advise whether the ground conditions are suitable for buggies to be allowed out. In the event of sudden down pours when no greenkeeping staff are on site the Pro Shop staff will inspect the 18<sup>th</sup> green for water laying on the surface and make a decision on whether golf can be played under such conditions.

#### Strong winds

In the event of strong winds (39+ mph), where branches falling from trees are a risk, the course will close. The Pro Shop will sound the klaxon to notify golfers to stop play and come in from the course.

#### **Retrieval of Golf Balls**

We do not advise retrieving golf balls from ponds. Anyone retrieving a ball from a water hazard does so at their own risk.

#### **Delayed Starting**

In the event of delayed starting due to frost delays or inclement weather, golf course staff will utilise discretion to start play in an appropriate and reasonable manner.

#### **Bunkers**

Most of our bunkers are fairly easy to get in and out of. The direct route to your bunkered ball is not always the easiest.

Please enter and exit the bunkers at the shallowest point.

#### **Members of the Public**

Please be tolerant of non-golfers who use Knighton Heath Golf Club. Please be patient and only hit the ball when you know they are safe and not within range including the shot which may go astray.

All accidents and injuries must be reported to the Pro Shop.

#### **Polite Notice**

In the interests of Health and Safety, Greenkeeping Staff have right of way over play whilst carrying out essential maintenance tasks on the golf course.

If for any reason you are held up due to a maintenance task being carried out, please wait until the Greenkeeper moves over to a safe area and waves for you to resume play.

The Greenkeeping staff will do all they can to ensure your game is not held up for any longer than is necessary.

#### Play Discontinued:

The signal for suspending/resuming play due to a dangerous situation will be:

- a) Discontinue Play Immediately: One prolonged note of siren.
- b) Discontinue Play: Three consecutive notes of siren, repeated.
- c) Resume Play: Two short notes of siren, repeated.

When play is suspended for a dangerous situation, if the players in a match or group are between the play of two holes, they must not resume play until the Committee has ordered a resumption of play.

If they are in the process of playing a hole, they must discontinue play immediately and not resume play until the Committee has ordered a resumption of play.

If a player fails to discontinue play immediately, he is disqualified, unless circumstances warrant waiving the penalty as provided in <u>Rule 33-7</u>.

#### Resumption of Play:

Play must be resumed from where it was discontinued, even if resumption occurs on a subsequent day. The player must, either before or when play is resumed, proceed as follows:

- d) if the player has lifted the ball, he must, provided he was entitled to lift it under Rule 6-8c, place the original ball or a substitute ball on the spot from which the original ball was lifted. Otherwise, the original ball must be replaced.
- e) if the player has not lifted his ball, he may, provided he was entitled to lift it under Rule 6-8c, lift, clean and replace the ball, or substitute a ball, on the spot from which the original ball was lifted. Before lifting the ball, mark its position; or
- f) if the player's ball or ball-marker is moved (including by wind or water) while play is discontinued, a ball or ball-marker must be placed on the spot from which the original ball or ball-marker was moved.

**Note:** If the spot where the ball is to be placed is impossible to determine, it must be estimated, and the ball placed on the estimated spot. The provisions of <u>Rule 20-3c</u> do not apply.

When a player discontinues play of a hole under Rule 6-8a, he may lift his ball, without penalty, only if the Committee has suspended play or there is a good reason to lift it. Before lifting the ball, the player must mark its position. If the player discontinues play and lifts his ball without specific permission from the Committee, he must, when reporting to the Committee (Rule 6-8a), report the lifting of the ball.

# **SECTION C - PLAY**

#### 25. Members (with guests)

• may commence play at any time provided this complies with tee reservations in respect of recognised golfing events, society reservations and general play. Please also refer to byelaw 25 below (Home Matches).

#### 26. Home Match Bookings

- Monday & Tuesday between 11:00 & 12:00 only, allowing for competitions any Ladies & Seniors matches.
- Wednesday to Friday between 10:00 & 12:00 the following club representative matches only; Beales (ladies), Beckford Bowl, Bridport Bowl, Daily Mail, Dorset League, Hardy, Interclub (ladies) and Parkin Cup (ladies).
- Monday to Friday after 13:00 any club match.
- Weekends after 13:00

Note: Seniors winter league matches are restricted to a Monday only.

#### 27. Visitors

- paying a green fee and not the guest of a member, the following times apply
  - Weekdays: Monday to Friday, 10:00 – 11:00 GMT (winter), 10:00 - 12:00 and after 13:30 BST (summer)
  - Weekends & Bank Holidays; may ONLY commence play after 13:30
- playing in any organised competitions e.g. opens, invitations & wine scrambles etc must play a levy to the club of £5pp. It is incumbent on the sections to collect the levy and to pay them to the club.
- **28.** Groups & Societies reserved tee times are only allowed on <u>weekdays</u> as detailed in 25 above (visitors) and have precedence on the tee. No weekend and bank holiday bookings are allowed.

#### 29. Flexible Membership Rules

- Flexible members must at all times display their current membership bag tag as well their green fee payment tag.
- Green fees must be paid at the Pro Shop before playing.
- Flexible members are **not** entitled to sign in guests, at the reduced member's rate or by using the discount vouchers. Flexible members guests must therefore pay the full green fee rate.
- Flexible members are also reminded that they must be present and also play with any
  guest that is introduced at KHGC. They are also responsible for their conduct and
  dress while on the course and in the club house.
- Flexible members are **not** entitled to use the KHGC Reciprocal Scheme in order to play at other clubs.
- Flexible members are not allowed to play in any club competitions other than the Captains, Presidents and Professionals golf days by paying the appropriate guest of a member green fee rate, in addition to the competition entry fee. Members must have a valid handicap.

# 30. Tee Sponsors

Must adhere to the byelaw pertaining to visitors in 25 above, and in addition no group bookings are to be made between 1 November & 31 March. Group booking (10+) are only allowed after 13:30 between 1 April and 31 October.

# 31. All Players

- must adhere to reserved times as displayed on the notice board outside the Men's changing room door or as displayed on the club's internet web site and via other devices and formats.
- should play the course in the order indicated on the score card.
- only members may choose to not play any hole(s) during their round and may only re-commence play subject to allowing reasonable space between themselves and any players ahead and/or behind them on the next hole.
- must always give priority to greens staff performing their duties.
- may only commence play from the:
  - o 1<sup>st</sup> when the group ahead are on the green
  - o 11<sup>th</sup> when the group ahead have left the green
  - o or, in either case if/when called through by the group ahead.

# **SECTION D - COMPETITIONS**

# 32. Eligibility

A player is eligible to compete in Club trophy competitions only if he or she has a competition handicap as defined by the CONGU Unified Handicap Scheme.

# 33. Knock-Out Competitions.

The following rules apply to all Club knock-out matches:

- the first named player or pair is responsible for contacting the opponent(s) within 1
  week of the closing date of the previous round, offering three separate dates
  including a weekday and a weekend date within the period allowed for the
  conclusion of the match.
- if the players or pairs in a match cannot agree a suitable date within the specified period, they are to inform the Club Manager no later than one week before the period ends. The Club Manager will give a date for them to appear on the tee (usually the closing date of the period in question) at 5pm to play. If neither party conforms, then all parties shall be disqualified but will be awarded to any one player/pair that does appear by the time allocated then the match.
- the following finals will be played on the designated day (Finals Day) each year and at the times specified below:

```
08:00 - Arthur Trudgett (Scratch) KO (36 Hole)
```

08:10 - Ladies Spring Cup (36 Hole)

08:20 - Spring Cup (U18 H'cap) KO

08:30 - Presidents Salver KO

08:40 - Beck Cup (19+ H'cap) KO

08:50 - Ladies Silver Platter KO

09:00 - Men's Foursomes KO

09:10 - Mixed Foursomes KO

09:20 - Seniors Greensomes KO

09:30 - Seniors 4BBB KO

09:40 - Ladies Bronze Platter KO

13:00 - Arthur Trudgett (Scratch) KO (36 Hole)

13:10 - Ladies Spring Cup (36 Hole)

• If one of the players has qualified for 2 or more finals and provided the other players or pairs agree, the reserve finals day may also be utilized.

# 34. Saturday and Sunday Competitions (Medals / Stablefords)

Members may only enter either the Saturday or the Sunday in advance, of the competition.

- If spaces are available, members playing in the Saturday competition may only enter the Sunday competition after 08:00 on Saturday.
- If spaces are available, members playing in the Sunday competition may only enter the Saturday competition after 08:00 on Friday.

Members will be immediately removed from either competition, if they have entered both competitions before the deadline as detailed above.

Members who wish to withdraw from any competition must do so by 12 midnight, on the day prior to the competition, or they will be charged the full entry fee.

Any "no shows" on the day will automatically be charged the full entry fee. No Shows will be regularly monitored by the H & C Sub-Committee.

# 35. Shotgun Starts

• No shotgun starts are to be held between 1 November and 31 March each year without the express permission of the Captains Committee.

#### 36. Order of Merit

The following rules will apply:

- Scores counting towards the Order of Merit will be the GROSS score from all monthly medal competitions from April to September each year, including each individual round of Club Championships, with a player's 1st score counting.
- Scores will be tabled together (Saturday, Sunday & Wednesday) and a combined leader board calculated with points allocated as follows; 1<sup>st</sup> 10pts, 2<sup>nd</sup> 8pts, 3<sup>rd</sup> 6pts, 4<sup>th</sup> 5pts, 5<sup>th</sup> 4pts, 6<sup>th</sup> 3pts, 7<sup>th</sup> 2pts and 8<sup>th</sup> 1pt.
- Ties are resolved via countback and points awarded to winners.

#### 37. Late Cards

If a member is unable to play at any of the allocated start times for all monthly medal and stableford competitions, the member will be able to take out what is called a "late card."

Each member taking out a "late card" must sign-in and pay at the Pro Shop, prior to playing on the day and by 18:00.

The format of play must be in either 3 or 2 balls.

This applies to all midweek and weekend medals and stablefords only, no board competitions.

Please note that late cards will have no playing rights on the course even though they are playing in a competition.

# 38. Handicap Supplementary Scores

A Club Member may return a Supplementary Score for handicapping purposes under the following conditions:

#### Course

An acceptable score for Supplementary Score purposes is any authenticated score under Competition Play Conditions in compliance with the conditions listed below, returned for handicapping purposes at an Affiliated Club of which the player is a Member, other than in a Qualifying Competition and played over 18 Holes in either Stroke Play or Stableford format or over a designated nine hole course for handicaps of Category 2 and above in Stableford format.

#### **Limitations for Category 1 Members**

Only Category 1 Members are limited to a number of Supplementary Scores in each year as detailed in below:

- Category 1 players may only return Supplementary Scores during the period
   September to 31 December and only to the extent necessary to ensure the minimum requirement for Qualifying Scores in the Year. Category 1 players may only return Supplementary Scores over 18 holes.
- Any number of Supplementary Scores may be returned annually by players in Categories 2 to 6.

#### **Procedure**

The following procedure is in place at KHGC for any member wishing to return a Supplementary Score.

- The player must complete the correct course card with the competition marked as SUPPLEMENTARY, together with the Date, Time, Player and Markers names printed clearly.
- Prior to their round the Club member **MUST REGISTER** their intention to play in the Pro Shop.
- On completion of the round, the player will ensure their Name, Handicap, which colour Tees they play off and Supplementary Scores, are correctly entered on the card and the card is signed, on completion by the Marker and Player ensuring the marker's signature is legible.
- Scorecards **MUST** be returned to the Pro Shop
- A player who has registered for a Supplementary Score who subsequently does not return a card will receive an increase in handicap of 0.1.
- Returns may be subject to action under Clause 23 B if malpractice is suspected.